2J WATFORD
1% ‘BOROUGH
COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

7 December 2021

7.30 pm

(Please note the time of this meeting)

Town Hall, Watford

Contact

lan.Smith

democraticservices@watford.gov.uk
01923 278323

For further information about attending meetings please visit the council’s website.

Publication date: 29 November 2021


mailto:legalanddemocratic@watford.gov.uk
https://www.watford.gov.uk/info/20017/councillors_and_decision_making/163/can_i_attend_a_committee

Committee Membership

Councillor P Jeffree (Chair)
Councillor R Martins (Vice-Chair)
Councillors N Bell, S Johnson, J Pattinson, A Saffery, R Smith, S Trebar and M Watkin

Agenda

Part A — Open to the Public

CONDUCT OF THE MEETING

The committee will take items in the following order:

1.

All items where people wish to speak and have registered with Democratic
Services.

Any remaining items the committee agrees can be determined without further
debate.

Those applications which the committee wishes to discuss in detail.

An update sheet concerning item 5 was circulated on 7 December and is attached to this
agenda.

Additionally the officers’ presentation is also attached to the agenda and is available for
people viewing the meeting to refer to.

Apologies for absence

Disclosure of interests

Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 2 November 2021 to be submitted and signed.

21/01279/FUL — The Imam Hussein Foundation, 205 North Approach, WD25 OES
(Pages 32 - 40)

21/01496/FUL 140 Pinner Road Watford WD19 4EN (Pages 41 - 53)

21/00971/FULM - Land To South Of Colonial Way Either Side Clive Way, Watford,
WD24 4FL (Pages 54 - 73)


http://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=292&Year=0

Introduction

Please note that the officer report is a summary of the issues including representations
made and consultation responses. Full details of the applications, plans submitted,
supporting information and documents, representations made, consultation responses
and correspondence can be found on the council’s web based Public Access system using
the application reference or address.

Specific policy considerations for each application are detailed within the individual
reports. The background papers and policy framework listed below have been relied upon
in the preparation of the reports in this agenda.

Background papers
e The current planning applications under consideration and correspondence related
to that application.
e All relevant third party representations and consultation replies received.
Policy Framework
e The Statutory Plans and Supplementary Planning Guidance, together with relevant
Government legislation, Circulars, Advice, Orders, Directions and Guidance listed
below:

Local Planning Documents

Local Development Documents provide the framework for making planning decisions.
These can be found on the Council’s website and include:

e the existing Local Plan which consists of the Core Strategy, saved policies in the
Watford District Plan 2000 and Proposals Map); and

e Supplementary Planning Documents.
County Planning Documents
The Hertfordshire Waste Local Plan and Minerals Local Plan prepared by Hertfordshire
County Council are material considerations alongside the Watford Local Plan. These
documents can be found on the county council’s website.
National Planning Documents

Key legislation can be found using this weblink, including:

e Growth and Infrastructure Act (2013)
e Housing and Planning Act (2016)


http://pa.watford.gov.uk/publicaccess/
https://www.watford.gov.uk/info/20168/planning_policy
http://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/

e Localism Act (2011) and subsequent amendments

e Planning Act (2008) and subsequent amendments

e Planning and Compulsory Planning Act (2004) and subsequent amendments

e Town and Country Planning Act (1990) and subsequent amendments

e Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 and
subsequent amendments.

National guidance can be found on the government service and information website,
including:

e National Planning Policy Framework (revised February 2019) and supporting
Technical Guidance

e Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) (web based)

e Planning policy for traveller sites

e Relevant government circulars

e Relevant Ministerial Statements (which will be referred to in the individual reports
as necessary)

Section 106 Planning obligations and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

The Council introduced the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) with effect from 1 April
2015. The CIL charge covers a wide range of infrastructure as set out in the Council’s
Regulation 123 list, including highways and transport improvements, education provision,
youth facilities, childcare facilities, children’s play space, adult care services, open space
and sports facilities. CIL is chargeable on the relevant net additional floorspace created by
the development. The charge is non-negotiable and is calculated at the time that planning
permission is granted where relevant. Section 106 planning obligations can only be used
to secure affordable housing provision and other site specific requirements, such as the
removal of entitlement to parking permits in Controlled Parking Zones and the provision of
fire hydrants.

Human Rights implications

The Local Planning Authority is justified in interfering with the applicant’s human rights in
order to alleviate any adverse effect on adjoining properties and their occupiers and on
general public amenity. With regard to any infringement of third party human rights,
these are not considered to be of such a nature and degree as to override the human
rights of the applicant and therefore warrant refusal of planning permission.


http://www.gov.uk/

Agenda Annex

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
7t" December 2021

UPDATE SHEET

Item 5: 21/01496/FUL 140 Pinner Road, Watford WD19 4EN

ADDITIONAL REPRESENTATION

One additional objection has been received, totalling 7 objections to the application.
The matters raised are already discussed and considered in the published report.

Page 5



Development Management
Committee

7th December 2021

(303 WATFORD
" BOROUGH
ey COUNCIL




[ 98ed

Iltem 4 - 21/01279/FUL

The Imam Hussein Foundation
205 North Approach

Retention of an infill canopy with front entrance
doors (retrospective)

2 WATFORD
® 5 ® BOROUGH
COUNCIL




g 93e(d

. . 7 \ N
= / PP '
/ ’ T AN
.f. " ‘ -/- n_\ /‘/.- l\\ -
-"I“‘-" - . '/’<. 4 \ >N
/ p £ N\ YV
/ - 7\ /—\‘Q \) I'e
r"'_‘”\ . : o \\(\/)\.k 'b\\\_’- \\
['. vl AN "\"\ T
{ ; 4 AN, “ ¢
™~ x.:'f 4 \\"/ N '-\:'/ N\ \\ \\
\, /"'\\_ /'\ N N ",('\:
. 20 W ON NN AN i
\\\ ¢\ 5" L N\ " NN Y 7 A \
» XN\ \. v S/
.; i\\."r’ N \\ ! {:‘\/f //, /\.'(; 7/
Y FNC N N \Y g VAR .
] N L N 'y
/ 5 N NLANY Y i yavd
/ / \ b ‘\\\ p o My / /./ /
y / X /
/ \\ N A L . \
" / NN ALY S -\\\\(/ /,f /
- / , e rd ’
. /J O /
- / \,\ \\ /}\ Vd \\ ‘// /
¢/ NN S NN
J . \ v \ /
~_ / N NS
H'.J NN ))‘_ / “\ \(/ /,
/ ’ ; . F : Wath", I/ "\, /
4 ' s Q‘- \ "9 Y ¥ "\ y
/ Badgers . AP o A 4 / \:\‘//
/ N 4 / ) “
/ Court ¢ g ¢ 'Y

y N
i) S . >\
/ P ht / \

s ’ . // Kmq\“ﬁy
7 P / Junior
NN A Sehool N\

74 “ </ A
'y " \ ‘\
P d ™\, \, \ A

g N O N)Y $

'Y , . \"«": . . \\\ \ / g
4 Kingsway: ., . N V4 /

4 s T 1)
7 R ; b, ’\K Infants ,’ k\\_\ / 'S
/ AN School N E 2
.’ o N
¥ ’ ; VN "
; , X/
. 4 o, >V S
’ . . )
’/ y lrl LS '\:\\\ ’ /

SITE PLAN

LS5 WATFORD
* % ®/ BOROUGH

Site location plan gEemy  COUNCIL




The Imam’Hussein
Foundafion Centre

AP _
iwm,,_ 1 WATFORD
4| ™ BOROUGH

Aerial View of the site (Google) w=my  COUNCIL




0T 98ed

KITCHEN

e e e e s a2 2 B —

EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION

Proposed Plans

§5=) WATFORD

\® & ® BOROUGH

wEemy  COUNCIL




1T 98ed

Site Photos

W2 2772

K2 WATFORD
t ® BOROUGH
wemy  COUNCIL




ZT 93ed

e el SR, K
e :,y:'; e
s sy~ "R N 3 SO e

Previously fenced off area — set back from the street
Underutilised space behind

Previous Frontage

’i@ “i WATFORD
¢ %/ 'BOROUGH

sy COUNCIL

e,




€1 93ed

Stretscene views (Google)

2 WATFORD
\|®/ BOROUGH
wxmy COUNCIL




T 98ed

Recommendation

Approve planning permission, subject to those
conditions set out in Section 8 of the Committee
report.

§] WATFORD

\® & * BOROUGH
wmEzmy  COUNCIL




GT 98ed

Iltem 5 -21/01295/FULM

140 Pinner Road Watford WD19 4EN

Erection of a new detached bungalow on the land at
the rear of 140 Pinner Road

§5=) WATFORD

® & ® BOROUGH

COUNCIL




——

e

e

Page 16

o,
]

' WATFORD

/ BOROUGH
COUNCIL

(4 1




;‘1_'40 Pinner Rd,
), ;&Waifcrd WDill9 4EN

%\ :,‘3~

L

),
Aerial view of Site (Google) . %%FLONUC(?EI

() WATFORD




- WATFORD
/ BOROUGH
COUNCIL

)
o ®
{ o 80L0

ff—
i

©
(q0)
@)
o
| -
)
C
=
(o
&
(@)
-
Y—
=
9
>




RPN | A
O\ B LT

s pﬁ...r’ maw.:?mﬂ 1

iy
§

{ WATFORD
/ BOROUGH
COUNCIL

WARNING
1y + : !ﬁ‘

Q
>
-
()
-z
C
©
o]
=
L
o
>
S
L
>




0¢ 938ed

4 Sy

oarded

Close B
etre 1210300

v 3

GARDEN SZE - 116
g m

PLOT SIZE — 263 8q
m

{ Sub Station
ERET.00

Trim Bock
adating Hedging
B Frmove Evisting

i Arage
e sche Drain

k-

>

BOROUGH

wizmy  COUNCIL



Tz 98ed

B1.38m

TRADm
T836m M

TBam T8.13m

im TREIm
TAO4m

View from Firbank Road

P WATFORD
® %® BOROUGH

sEmmy  COUNCIL




2 93ed

Recommendation

Approve planning permission, subject to those
conditions and informatives set out in Section 8
of the Committee report.

f] WATFORD

\® & * BOROUGH
wEzmy  COUNCIL




€z 98ed

Item 6 — 21/00971/FULM

Land To South Of Colonial Way Either Side Clive Way,
Watford, WD24 4FL

Demolition of existing industrial buildings and
construction of three buildings to provide industrial
units (flexible uses Class E(g), B2 and/or B8) with
ancillary offices, new accesses, associated yard,
parking area and sprinkler tank/infrastructure, and
landscaping.

§5=)) WATFORD

\® & ® BOROUGH

COUNCIL




=l . )
(5] WATFORD

i & W)
Aerial of site (Google) . %%I:%JONUC(?{'




Gz 93ed

NOTES

Reprrcdured fror the Qrinance Survey mup wih e
perision of the Controber of Her Majesty's Satinoery
Offoe, © G CIpyTTE

© 4 Cornish i Aspociotes L Ucenos oo L3508,

Subact i SabsSry Appovs.

Etng trees b be remoees
3 Eestngtmes
Atz v

Astral House | §or ; - e

Dyt hie it Lt v

B
Y e Ty RO prp——
e i Ll pire :
5 al e gohE
Evicmal gate to unk 3 smended o
v,

cornishar

The Balmoral;

e T,
COLONLAL WAY WATFORD

e TE
PROPOSED SITE PLAN

{ WATFORD
BOROUGH

Proposed Site Plan 1 COUNCIL



9 98ed

e, war T

e TN PLAKKENG

2L . =
£ 1 1 K
&

(23 i

i, ey

" s s 1

TR

Mo e TR s cancuaTon
5

() K PG TOPARIING B
(5 me

Firicm L S B

s v
) o B, B, G

i =
T e
L

(" MIEROIS COMPOSITE FACASE A3 CLTIAN WaLLING:
(22 N armpasts b acsde spe

BTNCE Chve cotA

o, ey e

" e e

WATFORD
BOROUGH

COUNCIL



(X)) WATFORD

. . ® & ™ BOROUGH
Neighbouring Amenity (Google) COUNCIL




8¢ 93ed

EI Sub Sta

e (T o
f%C%) WATFORD
% ® BOROUGH

Soft Landscaping 3=y COUNCIL



BOROUGH
COUNCIL




0€ 98ed

WATFORD
" BOROUGH
COUNCIL




1€ 93ed

Recommendation

Approve planning permission, subject to those
conditions and informatives set out in Section 8
of the Committee report.

= D i)
F3E3 WATFORD

\® % ® BOROUGH
sEemy  COUNCIL




Agenda Item 4

Committee date 7 December 2021
Application reference 21/01279/FUL — The Imam Hussein Foundation, 205 North
Site address Approach, WD25 OES
Proposal Retention of an infill canopy with front entrance doors
(retrospective)
Applicant Mr Nawrozzadeh
Agent Sterling Town Planning
Type of Application Full Planning Permission
Reason for committee Number of Objections
Item
Target decision date 14 January 2022
Statutory publicity Neighbour letters
Case officer Sam Oguz, sam.oguz@watford.gov.uk
Ward Stanborough
1. Recommendation
1.1 That planning permission be granted subject to conditions, as set out in section 8 of
this report.
2. Site and surroundings
2.1 The application site comprises a 0.18 hectare, rectangular plot of land located in the
Stanborough Ward. The site, formerly, Kingswood Baptist Church, has been
converted for use of The Imam Hussein Foundation and all buildings on site are
associated to the foundation. There is a residential property on-site, 207 North
Approach, this dwelling is occupied by the congregation leader. The site has various
existing buildings on site of differing sizes and styles. It has a private car park at the
front and the frontage is characterised by the former church building and associated
house. The site boarders both Kingsway Infant and Junior Schools on the southern
elevations. The north-western side of the site is on North Approach and the north-
eastern perimeter is adjoined by the residential dwelling at 201 North Approach. The
site does have a secondary access from a service road to the rear off Briar Road. The
rest of the surrounding area is characterised by typical two-storey semi-detached
properties. Opposite the site is a row of mature deciduous trees which block the
view from Kingsway North Orbital Road, these trees are not the subject of a Tree
Preservation Order or impacted by this proposal.
1.2 The site is not in a conservation area nor does it affect the setting of a listed building.
3. Summary of the proposal
3.1 Proposal

This proposal seeks to retain the existing frontage and canopy erected between the
main building and the associated house at 207 North Approach. The canopy has

Page 32




3.2

4.1

51

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

entrance doors facing out onto North Approach and is made using wooden boards.
The canopy is open at the rear and does not fully enclose the space.

Conclusion

The proposal is set back from the streetscene and does not have any significant
impact on the visual amenity of the area, subject to the timber walls and doors being
stained. The extension fits within the single storey nature of the site and causes no
significant harm to the amenity of surrounding residential properties.

Relevant policies

Members should refer to the background papers attached to the agenda. These
highlight the policy framework under which this application is determined. Specific
policy considerations with regard to this particular application are detailed in section
6 below.

Relevant site history/background information

On the 20th February 2020 planning permission (ref: 19/01482/FUL) was granted for
a side extension to be used as a kitchen space. The infill canopy will connect to this
extension.

Main considerations
The main issues to be considered in the determination of this application are:

(a) Principle of development

(b) Scale, design and impact on the character and appearance of the area
(c) Impact on neighbouring amenity

(d) Traffic, highways and parking impacts

(a) Principle of the development

The current use of the site is a Class F1 place of worship. This has always been the
use of the site and will remain unchanged by this development. It is considered that
the works will include the enhancement of a community facility which is in
accordance with the emerging policy HC12.3 of Watford’s Final Draft Local Plan
2018-2036, this encourages the use and improvement of cultural community
centres. The infill canopy has replaced previously underutilised space on the site. The
canopy has not resulted in blocking off a section of the site, as there was previously a
fence between the main building and 207 North Approach.

It is considered that that the principle of allowing the infill canopy would be
appropriate and acceptable.

(b) Scale, design and impact on the character and appearance of the area

The canopy is a relatively large extension when viewed from the front with a height
of 3.7m. However, the frontage is does not have a prominent appearance within the

Page 33



6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

7.1

7.2

streetscene, being in line with the existing buildings, and is not in direct view from
any residential property.

The rest of the site is made up of various single and two storey buildings. The canopy
extension is subordinate in height when compared to these and would not be
considered as overdevelopment of the site. The current wooden finish is lighter in
colour than the rest of the frontage so a condition should be imposed that would
require a darker stain applied to the wooden frontage to ensure it blends in with its
surroundings. Overall, the proposal is not considered to significantly impact on the
character and appearance of the site or surrounding area.

(c) Impact on neighbour amenity
The canopy itself will have no adverse impact on neighbouring amenity. There is no
loss of private parking spaces as a result of the extension.

The canopy itself causes no loss of light and no loss of outlook to neighbouring
residents given the enclosed nature of the proposal and the separation distance to
boundaries.

(d) Traffic, highways and parking impacts

The current traffic, highways and parking impacts would be unchanged. The site
retains the same level of private parking and the surrounding area is not covered by
a controlled parking zone. Parking on North Approach is unrestricted and despite
neighbour concerns, this development is unlikely to have any impact on parking
issues.

Consultation responses received

Statutory consultees and other organisations

None.

Interested parties

Letters were sent to 20 properties in the surrounding area. Responses have been
received from 7 nearby addresses. Of these responses all 7 were objections.

The application was also advertised using a site notice posted on 3" September
2021.

The main comments are summarised below, the full letters are available to view
online on the Council’s website:

Comments Officer response
Parking issues on site resulting in See paragraph 6.8 of this report.
spill over to North Approach and
Briar Road

Page 34



Noise pollution from events carried
out at the site

The canopy itself is unlikely to contribute
to an increase in noise disturbances. The
canopy may in fact enclose activity
within the site reducing the potential for
noise. The Council’s Environmental
Health team can be contacted if noise
levels are deemed to be excessive.

Impact to the character and
appearance of the area

See paragraphs 6.4- 6.5 of this report.

Loss of light and outlook to
residential dwellings

See paragraphs 6.6-6.7 of this report.

Overdevelopment of the site

The site currently has a number of
buildings, this canopy does not protrude
the front building line and despite
infilling the area between the residential
property on-site, the canopy is not
considered an over-development of the
site.

Intended use of the canopy

Many objections state the canopy is used
as a function room. However, the canopy
is open walled and is clearly separated
from the main service area. Therefore, it
would be regarded the primary use of
the canopy would be as an
entrance/meeting area for worshipers.
This is ancillary to the main use of the
centre and doesn’t increase the
functional use space of the facility.

Smell of cooking late into the night

The canopy does not contain any cooking
facilities within it, therefore this is not a
planning consideration and not relevant
to this application.

Frustration about the site already
having one application being
granted retrospectively

Whilst the frustration is understood this
is not a relevant consideration of this
application and retrospective
applications are still judged equally
against planning policy.

The addition of a white plastic
frontage

The white frontage on the canopy was a
temporary installation and has since
been removed.

Loss of privacy as a result of usage of
the service road at the rear of
gardens on North Approach

The canopy itself is unlikely to contribute
to the use of this service road. The use of
the service road is a civil matter.

Land Registry covenants

Any existing covenants still apply,
however they are not relevant
considerations as part of the planning
process.

Page 35




8. Recommendation
8.1 That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:
Conditions

1. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following drawings,
unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The following
drawings are hereby approved:

- Drawing Number: 205NA/01
- Drawing Number: 205NA/02
- Drawing Number: 205NA/03
- Drawing Number: 205/NASP

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and the interests of proper planning.

2. Within 1 month from the date of this permission, details of the colour of a timber
stain to be applied to the walls and doors of the canopy frontage facing North
Approach shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved stain shall be applied within 2 months of being approved
and shall be retained at all times.

Reason: In the interests of the visual appearance of the site.

Page 36



Site Location Plan

Page 37



Block Plan/Layout

KITCHEN

CANOPY

EXISTING BLOCK PLAN

it b oo bl onivanal

Page 38



Elevation Plan

B e e e

EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION

Photos of the Site

View from North Approach

Page 39



Internal Pictures

Page 40



Agenda Item 5

Committee date

Tuesday, 7 December 2021

Application reference
Site address

21/01496/FUL 140 Pinner Road Watford WD19 4EN

committee Item

Proposal Erection of a new detached bungalow on the land at the
rear of 140 Pinner Road

Applicant Mr Jayesh Patel

Agent None

Type of Application Full Planning Permission

Reason for Objections to the application

Target decision date

8" December 2021

Statutory publicity

Letters to neighbouring properties

Case officer

Alice Reade, alice.reade@watford.gov.uk

That planning permission be granted subject to conditions, as set out in

No 140 Pinner Road is a detached bungalow located at the corner of Pinner
Road and Firbank Drive. The application site consists of an area of rear garden
to the east of the bungalow. The site currently comprises garden and a
detached single garage with access from Firbank Drive.

There are significant ground level changes in the area with ground level rising
from the south- west to the north-east putting the site on an elevated position

The building on site is not listed or locally listed. The roads are not subject to a
Controlled Parking Order. The site is not within a conservation area however to
the north of the site is the Oxhey Conservation Area.

Ward Oxhey

1. Recommendation
1.1

section 8 of this report.
2. Site and surroundings
2.1
2.2

to the rear of the existing bungalow.
2.3
3. Summary of the proposal
3.1 Proposal
3.2

Erection of a new detached bungalow on the land at the rear of 140 Pinner
Road. The bungalow would contain 2 bedrooms and would have on-site
parking from the existing access to Firbank Drive.

Page 41



3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

4.2

4.3

51

Conclusion

The proposed development is substantively different to the unacceptable
development previously proposed and dismissed at appeal. Specifically, the
previous application involved the demolition of the existing bunaglow and
substantial redevelopment fronting Pinner Road. The development now
proposed would see the retention of the existing bungalow and the modest
new development at its rear with access from Firbank Drive.

The proposed new bungalow would provide a good quality new dwelling in a
residential area and would be of appropriate scale, layout and design for the
site and context. By virtue of its position and single storey nature, the
development would not create harm to the amenities of neighbouring
properties. Development is therefore compliant with policies UD1, SS1 and
HS1 of the Watford Local Plan Core Strategy.

Relevant policies

Members should refer to the background papers attached to the agenda.
These highlight the policy framework under which this application is
determined. Specific policy considerations with regard to this particular
application are detailed in section 6 below.

Paragraph 11 d) of the NPPF 2019 establishes the ‘presumption in favour of
sustainable development’ and the principles of the ‘tilted balance’ that apply
where a local planning authority cannot demonstrate a 5 year housing supply
or have failed to deliver at least 75% of their housing requirement as part of
the Housing Delivery Test. Where the tilted balance applies, decision makers
should grant permission unless NPPF policies on protected areas or assets of
particular importance provide a clear reason for refusing development or, any
adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, assessed against NPPF policies taken as a whole. The
tilted balance has the effect of shifting the weight in the planning balance
away from local policies and towards the NPPF.

The Council scored below 75% in the most recent Housing Delivery Test
results and therefore the ‘tilted balance’ applies to the determination of this
planning application.

Relevant site history/background information

19/01278/FUL Demolition of existing building and construction of a two storey

Page 42



5.2

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

block of six flats with accommodation in the roof space. Planning permission
refused. Appeal Dismissed for reasons of adverse impact to character and
appearance of the area, adverse impact to neighbouring premises and poor
residential amenity for the proposed development.

Following the dismissed appeal the applicant has sought to engage positively
with the Council through preapplication discussions in respect of the land to
the rear of 140 Pinner Road only and proposals for a new detached bungalow.
(Reference 21/01211/PREAPP).

Main considerations

The main issues to be considered in the determination of these applications
are:

(a) Principle of residential development

(b) Scale and design

(c) Impact on setting of Oxhey Conservation Area
(d) Impact on surrounding properties

(e) Residential amenity

(f) Access, parking and waste

(a) Principle of residential development

The development proposes new housing in a residential area which is
acceptable in principle in accordance with Policy HS1 of the Watford Local
Plan. The principle of residential development is also acceptable in accordance
with ‘saved’ Policy H9 of the Watford District Plan for backland development
where there is appropriate access and subject to design matters.

(b) Scale and design

Policy UD1 of the Watford Local Plan sets out points to consider in achieving
high quality design for new development. Development should create high
quality new places and should respect and enhance the character of its area.

The adjacent Oxhey Conservation Area has a strong character of Victorian
terraces whilst the southern area of Pinner Road has some mix of terraces,
semi-detached and detached housing. Firbank Drive is a cul-de-sac notably
different in form. At the start of Firback Drive is the flank of the detached
bunaglow of No140 at its entrance and the flank of No142 to the opposite
side. Further along Firbank Drive, there are outbuildings, garages and parking
to the north side and semi-detached houses to the south and east. The
proposed detached bunaglow would relate in scale and nature to the existing
bungalow of No140 and would not come forward of the building line set by

Page 43



6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

the flank of No140. The new bungalow would be modest in its massing and
scale and include detailing to create a character and appearance suitable for
the context and compliant with Policy UD1 of the Watford Local Plan and
‘saved’ Policy H9 of the Watford District Plan.

(c) Impact on the setting of the Oxhey Conservation Area

The position of the development and its single storey nature would have
minimal visual presence from the Oxhey Conservation Area to the north and
would not create adverse impact to the setting of the Conservation Area.

(d) Impact on surrounding properties

The Residential Design Guide (RDG) details guidelines and recommends
minimum distances to determine appropriate relationships between a new
building or extension and a neighbouring property in order to prevent
unreasonable harm to the light, outlook, privacy and amenity of neighbouring
occupiers. The impact on the surrounding properties is detailed as follows:

No 140 Pinner Road

The proposed development would be immediately to the east of the existing
bungalow at No140 with separation of between 10m and 13m to the rear of
No140. Although single storey, the proposed bungalow is in an elevated
position relative to the rear of No140 and its garden. It is however noted that
the bungalow has a modest depth and modest roof pitch and height. It is also
set in from the boundary with No140. The bungalow would therefore not
appear unduly overbearing to the bungalow and garden and No140.

The impact to the sunlight and daylight of the existing bungalow has been
assessed in the submitted Sunlight and Daylight assessment carried out in
accordance with British Research Establishment (BRE) guidance. This finds that
the impact to daylight and sunlight of the windows and garden of No140
would be within reasonable limits as determined by the BRE guidance and
indicates that there would be no adverse harm to the property in this regard.

No windows are proposed on the west side elevation of the proposed
bungalow, facing the rear of No140 and a condition is recommended to
prevent the insertion of windows under Permitted Development in this
elevation to avoid overlooking.

No 142 Pinner Road

No 142 Pinner Road is set back notably from the road and is on the opposite
side of Firbank Drive. The single storey development would be positioned 14m
to the north-west of No142 Pinner Road and would create no notable loss of
light or outlook to this neighbour.

Page 44



6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

Nos 132-142 Villiers Road

The proposed development would be sited to the south of the group of
terraced properties at Nos 132 to 142 Villiers Road which back onto the north
(rear) boundary of the site. The proposed development would have distances
of 8.4m for its rear garden and 15m minimum back to back distances to the
existing dwellings. This is below RDG guidance which seeks 11m and 27.5m
respectively for distances for two storey buildings, however, as the proposed
development is single storey only, this would not include upper level windows
that would overlook the rear neighbours. The ground levels would also not
allow for notable overlooking from the ground floor windows. As such, the
development would not create unreasonable overlooking to the neighbours. A
condition is recommended to prevent any loft conversion works under
Permitted Development to avoid the creation of overlooking.

The height and distance of the proposed single storey development would
also avoid notable loss of light or outlook to these existing dwellings.

(e) Residential amenity

Section 7.3.6 of the Residential Design Guide sets out the minimum Gross
Internal Areas (GIA) for new dwellings in accordance with the nationally
described space standards. The GIA of the proposed dwelling at 70sgqm,
would meet the minimum standard of 70sqm for the 2 bed 4 person dwelling
type proposed. The dwelling would also have good layout, light and outlook
compliant with the Residential Design Guide.

The subdivision of the garden between the existing and proposed dwelling
creates private gardens areas of 200sgm and 116sqm respectively. These
exceeds the minimum garden standards of 50sgm in the RDG. The application
includes a detailed landscaping scheme for the site which is secured by
condition. The development would therefore include good amenity areas and
landscaping for the proposed dwelling compliant with the Residential Design
Guide.

(e) Access, parking and waste

It is noted that the north side of Firbank Drive to the front of the proposed
dwelling does not include a footpath and the front garden of the proposed
dwelling would abut the road. This is the existing situation with a pavement
only to the south side of the road. The site includes hard landscaping for its
occupants at the front of the dwelling and as the road is narrow and lightly
trafficked, its residents and visitors would have safe crossing from the front of
the dwelling to the south side pavement.

Page 45



6.16 In respect of the car access, this is unchanged from the existing so creates no
new issues. In respect of the pedestrian access to the site, the new dwelling
includes its own path at the front of the dwelling allowing access to its front
door and to its parking space. The occupants of the dwelling would therefore
have safe and convenient access compliant with ‘saved’ Policy H9 of the
Watford District Plan and it is noted that the Highway Authority have made no
objection to the arrangements.

6.17 ‘Saved’ Policy T24 of the Watford District Plan seeks for parking to be
provided as on-site provision and for new residential development to meet its
parking needs on-site and to prevent undue harm to the highway and road
amenity. The new dwelling includes on-site parking for up to two car spaces at
the east side of the bungalow. This is within the maximum standards of the
Watford District Plan.

6.18 The existing bungalow would lose its existing 2 spaces to allow for the
development. These parking spaces are not protected by any previous
planning condition and can be removed at any time. As such, loss of these
spaces for the existing dwelling cannot be prevented or warrant grounds for
refusal of this application. Notwithstanding this, the submitted plans show
two new car parking spaces with dropped kerb access to be created in the
amended garden of the existing bungalow. The Highway Authority has made
no objection to the provision of these spaces. As the relocated spaces are
shown to be within the same ownership as the applicant, these are secured by
condition.

6.19 Both the existing and new dwellings have garden areas with access to serve
bin and cycle storage as shown. This is secured by condition for the new
dwelling.

7. Consultation responses received

7.1 Internal Consultees

Consultee Comment Summary Officer Response

HCC Highway Authority No Objection Noted

WBC Waste and recycling No comment Bin store requirements
known and noted.

Rights of Way Officer No comments received

Arboricultural Officer No comments received

7.2  Interested parties

Page 46



Letters were sent to 21 properties in the surrounding area. Responses have
been received from 6 properties. The main comments are summarised below,
the full letters are available to view online:

Objection comment

Officer comments

Insufficient parking for the new
dwelling

This development includes parking
at the east of the bungalow which
could take up to two cars. This is
within the maximum standards and
is appropriate for a dwelling of this
size in this area.

New bungalow is of inadequate size
for modern living and is cramped
within the site.

The internal areas of the dwelling
meet the minimum size
requirements set by Government.
The site includes a garden area over
the minimum requirements and
gaps to all side boundaries. This is
therefore not perceived as
cramped.

The development creates
overlooking to neighbours.

The windows at the rear of the
bungalow are at ground floor level,
with an 8.4m deep garden and a
1.8m high boundary fence. These
would therefore not create
overlooking to the rear neighbours.

Concerns in respect of surface water
drainage

As the development is for less than
10 dwellings, no further details are
required for surface water drainage.

The new parking spaces for the
existing bungalow are too close to
Firbank Drive and will require
ground works

The Highway Authority has not
objected to these spaces. Full
details of the spaces is however
requested to be secured by
condition to the planning
permission.

Development is not in keeping with
the Edwardian and Victorian
character of the area.

The site is visually distinct from the
Oxhey Conservation Area and being
modest in scale, it would be
appropriate for the site and context.

Firbank Drive is a narrow road with
no pavement on the north side and
no turning area. It is unable to take
development traffic and
development would cause

The Highway Authority at Herts
County Council has been consulted
and make no objection to the
development.

Page 47




disruption to the road and access.
Loss of garden space harmful to The site is brownfield being
wildlife previously developed with garage
and hard standing. The proposed
development would see new
landscaping and trees along with
the new dwelling.

The applicant owns two HMOs in The proposed development is for a
Firbank Drive single dwelling house.

Recommendation
Grant planning permission subject to the following conditions:
Conditions

. Time Limit
The development to which this permission relates shall be begun within a
period of three years commencing on the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

. Approved Drawings

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following
drawings, unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The following drawings are hereby approved:

Existing Plans
MB-SURV-PR-TS-01 Rev 01
140PINN-LP02
140PINN-PPEO1
140PINN-SP0O6

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

. Parking for No140

No development shall commence until full details of the proposed access and
parking spaces to the dwelling at No140 Pinner Road have been submitted
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall
include any changes to the ground levels and details to avoid surface water
run off onto the Highway. The parking spaces shall be installed and made

Page 48




available for use prior to the occupation of the development and shall be
retained as approved.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and convenience.

4. Materials submitted
No external facing materials shall be installed on the development until full
details and samples of all the materials to be used for the external surfaces of
the building have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall only be constructed in the
approved materials.

Reason: In the interests of the visual appearance of the building and the
character and appearance of the area, in accordance with Policy UD1 of the
Watford Local Plan Core Strategy 2006-31.

5. Refuse, recycling and bicycle storage
The refuse, recycling and bicycle storage shall be constructed and installed in
accordance with the approved drawings and made available for use prior to
the occupation of any part of the development. The storage facilities shall be
retained as approved at all times thereafter.

Reason: To ensure adequate facilities are provided for the future occupiers
and in the interests of the visual appearance of the site, in accordance with
‘saved’ Policies SE7 and T10 of the Watford District Plan 2000 and Policy UD1
of the Watford Local Plan Core Strategy 2006-31.

6. Landscaping
The hard landscaping and boundary treatments shall be installed in accordance

with the approved drawings prior to the occupation of any part of the
development. The soft landscaping and planting shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved drawings in the first available planting season
following the completion of the development. Any trees or plants whether
new or existing which within a period of five years die, are removed or become
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season
with others of similar size and species, or in accordance with details approved
by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the visual appearance of the site, and amenity of
adjacent and future occupiers in accordance with Policies SD1 and UD1 of the

Watford Local Plan Core Strategy 2006-31.

7. West side windows

Page 49



No windows or doors shall be inserted into the west side elevation of the
development.

Reason: To prevent overlooking and consequent loss of privacy to neighbouring
premises pursuant to Policy UD1 of the Watford Local Plan Core Strategy 2006-
2031 and the Residential Design Guide 2016.

. Permitted Development Exemption for extensions and loft conversion

Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any modification or re-
enactment thereof), no development permitted under Schedule 2, Part 1,
Classes A, B or C of the Order shall be carried out to the dwellings hereby
approved without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to ensure that any such
developments are carried out in @ manner which will not be harmful to the
amenities of adjoining occupiers, in accordance with Policy UD1 of the Watford
Local Plan Core Strategy 2006-31.

Informatives

1. Positive and proactive statement
Building regulations

Party Wall Act

Hours of construction
Community Infrastructure Levy

e wnbN

Page 50



sagsrg 0 wopLoT]
DOOY IBUUA Rl B S o

Location Plan 1:1250

Page 51




7S 93ed

N

%

77.7m

851

> Existing Burgalow

Qv

ER .

Site Pl
12200

{

/

Birr

Sub Staton

DRNE

n
®

=
by
ErmmesnmrnsacesmensiEe.
—

==

R SR TSR RS e e e

e

———teme—

—
EREE LS




€6 93ed

Side Elevation [Right) Side Elevation [Left) Rear Elevation
]
s
Wiew from Firbank Road
—| [=
T ¥ | =
| ! = 5|8
zl 1= (Bl
HRENHER®
5 A =] P
i [ b I |22
| ' X |
i &
1
I T
| ‘ 1
- c
1 1 e 2
l ! I 5
&
p=]
N o 4
1 2 H
. Lounge/ I n =
‘ Dining Parking ‘ i & Z
= & =
[] | : :
1 1 o L=}
. [} a
‘ 2 B
= & E
l RS = 3
! ‘ T &
‘ Bedroom .f/ 1 |
1 I_rI !_ o
| i ;
— g | —= b
R H N\ | C
|
g
round Floor Plan I g
| | {
I
i




Agenda Item 6

Committee date

7 December 2021

Application reference
Site address

21/00971/FULM - Land To South Of Colonial Way
Either Side Clive Way, Watford, WD24 4FL

Proposal Demolition of existing industrial buildings and
construction of three buildings to provide industrial units
(flexible uses Class E(g), B2 and/or B8) with ancillary
offices, new accesses, associated yard, parking area and
sprinkler tank/infrastructure, and landscaping.

Applicant Coal Pension Properties Limited

Agent Rapleys LLP

Type of Application Full Planning Permission

Reason for Major Application

committee Item

Target decision date

8 December 2021

Statutory publicity

Watford Observer, Neighbour letters and Site Notice

Case officer

Andrew Clarke, andrew.clarke@watford.gov.uk

Ward

Tudor

1. Recommendation

1.1

That planning permission be granted subject to a Deed of Variation, executed

under s106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), and
conditions, as set out in section 8 of this report.

2. Site and surroundings

2.1

The application site comprises two separate plots of land which are to the

south side of Colonial Way, either side of Clive Way. The western site is
approximately 0.84 hectares in area and the eastern site is 0.78 hectares in
area. Together the sites are 1.62 hectares in total. The surroundings are
comprised predominantly of Use Class B commercial uses, though the eastern
site does adjoin the residential rear gardens of numbers 45 to 63 (odds)
Norbury Avenue to the east.

2.2

The site is within Employment Area E3 (Imperial Way / Colonial Way) in the

Watford District Plan and Special Policy Area SPA2 (Watford Junction) in the
Watford Local Plan Core Strategy. The employment area is subject to an
Article 4 direction which removes permitted development rights for
conversion to residential use.

3. Summary of the proposal

Page 54




3.1

3.2

4.1

51

5.2

6.1

Proposal
The key elements of this pre application proposal can be summarised as:

o Demolition of all the existing buildings on site, gross internal floorarea
of 7,297m?;

e Construction of three new industrial units, gross internal floorarea of
7,781m?;

e Provision of new parking (109 spaces) and access, and;

e lLandscaping and hardstanding works.

Conclusion

The proposed commercial buildings will provide modern employment
floorspace within this existing employment area. Furthermore, the scale and
design of the proposed buildings are considered to be acceptable. The
amenity of residential dwellings on Norbury Avenue would not be harmed.
There are considered to be no adverse effects that outweigh the benefits of
the proposal, therefore it is recommended that the application should be
approved subject to conditions.

Relevant policies

Members should refer to the background papers attached to the agenda.
These highlight the policy framework under which this application is
determined. Specific policy considerations with regard to this particular
application are detailed in section 6 below.

Relevant site history/background information

Various planning applications exist for minor developments which relate to
the industrial use of the site.

The applicant submitted a pre-application enquiry on 17% February 2021. A
virtual meeting was held on 23" March 2021 and a written response was
issued on 29" March 2021. This application was submitted on 28%" June 2021.
Amendments have been made to the proposal in line with the pre-application
response.

Main considerations

The main issues to be considered in the determination of this application are:

Page 55



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

(a) Principle of development

(b) Design and layout

(c) Access, parking and traffic generation
(d) Impact upon neighbouring properties
(e) Environmental considerations

(a) Principle of the development

The application sites are located in the Imperial Way / Colonial Way
Employment Area — indicated as Employment Area E3 on the Proposals Map
of the Watford District Plan 2000. “Saved” Policy E1 of the District Plan states
that proposals for light industry (Use Class B1(c)), general industry (Use Class
B2) and storage and distribution (Use Class B8) would be acceptable in
principle in the Employment Area. Prior to the adoption of the Town and
Country Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2020 use
class E(g)(iii) would have been part of the now revoked B1(c) use class. The
proposed uses would therefore be supported, in principle, in accordance with
policy designations.

Policy SS1 of the Watford Local Plan Core Strategy 2006-31 states than an
increase of at least 7,000 jobs is planned in the borough. Employment
opportunities will be focused on locations including allocated employment
areas and improvements to allocated employment areas will be encouraged
to meet modern business needs. The proposed units will provide an uplift of
around 9% in the overall gross internal employment floorspace in new,
modern buildings in accordance with these policies. The proposal is therefore
acceptable in principle.

The sites are within the Watford Gateway Strategic Development Area. This
proposal would not compromise the potential for any future connections from
Colonial Way / Clive Way through to the east side of Watford Junction Railway
Station. It is noted that the land surrounding the site would need opening up
to facilitate this connection and only when such a connection is secured can
the possibilities of optimising the development potential of sites to the east of
Watford Junction Railway Station be realised.

The sites are designated as employment allocation EMOS5 in the Final Draft
Local Plan, where employment uses are acceptable in principle. The western
site is adjacent to mixed use allocation MUQ7 which is considered suitable for
mixed-use development, including residential uses. The proposed
redevelopment is not considered to prejudice the future mixed-use
development of this adjoining site, particularly for residential use.

(b) Design and layout

Page 56



6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

The proposed layout of the two sites is comprised of three separate industrial
units with the largest unit on the western site (Unit 1), with two smaller units
(Units 2 and 3) on the eastern site. Employment space would be primarily at
ground floor level. Ancillary office accommodation would be at first floor level
within the units.

- Unit 1 would have a gross internal area of 4,290 square metres within a
building which is 15.4 metres high to the ridge line.

- Unit 2 would have a gross internal area of 2,653 square metres within a
building which is 12.7 metres high to the ridge line.

- Unit 3 would have a gross internal area of 838 square metres within a
building which is 10.9 metres high to the ridge line.

In terms of materials and finishes, the buildings would be finished in profiled
metal wall cladding in tones of grey with glazing around the entrances and at
two levels facing the public realm. The service yards would be enclosed by 2.4
metre high wire mesh fencing. The proposed layout does rationalise the
existing awkward layout of the sites, and the external appearance of the units
is considered to be acceptable in the context of the site’s industrial setting.

(c) Access, parking and traffic generation.

The vehicle access points and crossovers to the sites would be repositioned.
Hertfordshire County Council as the Highway Authority is satisfied with these
works.

The development would provide 109 car parking spaces, which equates to 1
space per 74.1m? gross internal area of employment space. Appendix 2 of the
District Plan states that the maximum parking standard for a Class B1(c) use is
1 space per 35m?, for Class B2 use is 1 space per 50m? and for Class B8 use is 1
space per 75m?. For mixed B Class uses where the individual uses are not
known, a blended standard of 1 space per 40m? is given. Note that former
Class B1(c) is now within new use Class E. Based upon the proposed floorspace
of 7,781m? and the location of the site within parking zone 4, the maximum
number of spaces based upon a mixed B Class use would be between 146 and
194 spaces. The parking provision of 109 spaces would therefore accord with
current adopted policy.

Active Electric Vehicle charging points will be provided at the outset covering
10% of the total on-site parking spaces. Passive provision in the form of
appropriate ducting will be provided for 50% of the total on-site parking
spaces.

Page 57



6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

Cycle parking is provided in accordance with the District Plan. Safe and secure
facilities for 18 cycles on Unit 1, 10 cycles on Unit 2 and 10 cycles on Unit 3 are
shown on the plans. These would accommodate both long and short stay
functions.

The application is supported by a Transport Statement which analyses the
proposed parking provision and anticipates the parking demand likely to be
generated by the proposed development. This anticipates that the proposals
could generate between 29 and 78 two-way vehicle movements in the AM
peak hour and between 20 and 66 two-way vehicle movements in the PM
peak hour. Of these approximately 5 of the movements will be made by heavy
goods vehicles.

The Highway Authority raises no objections to the proposal. It is, therefore,
considered that the proposed access arrangements, parking provision and
traffic generation resulting from this redevelopment are acceptable.

(d) Impact on neighbouring properties

The rear gardens of numbers 45 to 63 (odds) Norbury Avenue, a terrace of
two bedroom dwellinghouses which date from the 1990’s, adjoin the eastern
boundary of the eastern site. Proposed Unit 2 on the eastern site would have
a height of 7.8 metres and would be set 5 metres into the site at the closet
point, which is the same height and set in as the existing warehouse buildings.
Photographs within the applicant’s submission show the ground level of these
adjoining gardens to be higher than the subject site. The applicant has
undertaken a daylight / sunlight assessment which concludes that the
proposed development sufficiently safeguards the daylight and sunlight
amenity of these neighbouring properties. In addition new tree planting along
this boundary would further soften the outlook. No other residential uses
adjoin the site.

(e) Environmental considerations

(i) The most significant trees are those close to the highway around the
eastern site, of which a line of 5 lime trees adjacent to Colonial Way are of
moderate quality. The other trees throughout the site are of low quality and
significance, many of which are compromised by buildings in close proximity
and vehicles parking underneath. The redevelopment of the site would result
in the loss of several trees, including 2 of the aforementioned lime trees. The
applicant has included a soft landscaping plan with a management and
implementation plan which shows significant uplift in biodiversity at the site
with new trees, shrubs, hedges and grassed areas around the sites.

(i) Land contamination

Page 58



6.17

7.1

There is a high risk of contamination at the site due to previous land uses.
Controlled waters are sensitive at the site because it is located in Source
Protection Zone 1 and is located upon a principal aquifer. The Environment
Agency has stated that the reports submitted show that it will be possible to
suitably manage the risk posed to controlled waters by the development and
have requested a number of conditions relating to the submission of a
remediation strategy and monitoring. A lot of these proposed conditions are

pre-commencement conditions.

iii) Surface water drainage strategy

The applicant has provided sufficient detail to demonstrate that an acceptable

surface water drainage scheme can be provided to mitigate any potential

surface water flood risk. The proposed scheme is based upon attenuation and

restricted discharge of 2.5 |/s for each of the sites which represents a

substantial reduction on the existing situation. The County Council as the Lead

Local Flood Authority sought confirmation of discharge rates from Thames
Water and further re-consultation. Thames Water were satisfied with the

proposed discharge rates and the Local Lead Flood Authority did not respond

to the re-consultation.

Consultation responses received

Statutory consultees and other organisations

Name of Statutory
Consultee / Other
Organisation

Comment

Response

Environment Agency

No objection subject to
conditions.

Conditions proposed.

HCC Local Lead Flood
Authority

Sought confirmation on
discharge rates and
confirmation from
Thames Water.

Re-consulted. No
response received.
Conditions proposed.

Thames Water

No objection

Noted

Affinity Water

Agreed with
Environment Agency’s
response and
conditions.

Conditions proposed.

HCC Highway Authority

No objection, subject to
s106 and conditions.

S106 included.

Hertfordshire County
Council Minerals and
Waste

General comments
made. No objection.

Noted

Page 59




7.2

7.3

8.1

Internal Consultees

Name of Internal
Consultee

Comment

Response

WBC Environmental
Health

No objections subject
to conditions

Conditions proposed

WBC Waste and No objection Noted
Recycling
WBC Arboricultural No objection Noted

Officer

Interested parties

Letters were sent to 19 properties in the surrounding area. One response was

received from 59 Norbury Avenue. The main comments are summarised
below, the full letter is available to view online:

Comments

Officer response

dwellings

Loss of light to residential

See paragraph 6.14 of this report.

Traffic Generation

report.

See paragraphs 6.12 to 6.13 of this

Disruption from construction

The Environmental Protection Act,
the Control of Pollution Act and the
Highways Act control the matters of
disruption raised.

Recommendation

That, pursuant to a planning obligation under s.106 of the Town and Country

Planning Act 1990 having been completed to secure the following Heads of

Terms, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions listed below:

Section 106 Heads of Terms

i) To secure a financial payment to Hertfordshire County Council of

£6,000 for the long term monitoring of the proposed Travel Plan for the

site.

Conditions

Page 60




1. Time limit

The development to which this permission relates shall be begun within
a period of 3 years commencing on the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. Approved drawings and documents

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved drawings and documents:

- Drawing Number: 36698_T. Rev: 0

- Drawing Number: 36698 01 _E. Rev:
- Drawing Number: 36698 02 E. Rev:
- Drawing Number: 36698 03 E. Rev:
- Drawing Number: 36698 04 E. Rev:
- Drawing Number: 36698_05_E. Rev:
- Drawing Number: 2009 DLA L 01. Rev: P03
- Drawing Number: 2009 DLA L 04. Rev: P05
- Drawing Number: 2009 DLA L 05. Rev: P02
- Drawing Number: 2009 DLA L 06. Rev: PO1
- Drawing Number: 2009 DLA L 07. Rev: PO1
- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-001. Rev: -

- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-002. Rev: -

- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-003. Rev: B

- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-004. Rev: -

- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-005. Rev: -

- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-006. Rev: -

- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-007. Rev: -

- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-008. Rev: -

- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-009. Rev: -

- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-010. Rev: -

- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-011. Rev: -

- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-013. Rev: -

- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-014. Rev: -

- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-015. Rev: -

- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-016. Rev: -

- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-017. Rev: -

- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-018. Rev: -

- Drawing Number: 20008- TP-019. Rev: A

o OO oo

Page 61



Drawing Number: 20008- TP-020. Rev: -
Drawing Number: 20008- TP-021. Rev: A
Drawing Number: 20008- TP-022. Rev: -
Drawing Number: 20008- TP-023. Rev: -
Drawing Number: 20008- TP-024. Rev: -

Transport Statement. Drafted by: David Tucker Associates.
Ref: SKP/RT 22331. Dated: 18™ June 2021
Response to HCC Consultation — Trip Generation. Drafted By

David Tucker Associates Ref: SKP/22331-04. Dated 29 July
2021

Framework Travel Plan. Drafted by: David Tucker Associates.
Ref: SKP/22331-04. Dated: 18th June 2021
Preliminary Investigation Report. Drafted by: lan Farmer

Associates. Dated: September 2020
Remediation & Verification Strategy. Drafted by: Gyoury Self
Partnership. Dated: 21 June 2021

Geo-Environmental Assessment. Drafted by: Delta Simons.
Dated: April 2021

Ground Gas Monitoring Assessment. Drafted by: Delta
Simons. Dated: August 2021.

Energy Efficiency and Sustainable Development Report.

Drafted by: Synergy Building Services. Dated: 18th June 2021

Flood Risk Assessment. Drafted by: BWB. Ref: CWW-BWB-ZZ-
XX-RP-YE-0001_FRA

Sustainable Drainage Assessment. Drafted by: BWB. Ref:
CWW-BWB-ZZ-XX-RP-CD-0001_SDS

Landscape Management and Implementation Plan. Drafted
by: Davies Landscape Architects. Ref: DLA-2009-LMP-01-
RevP02. Dated: May 2021

Tree Survey and Constraints Plan. Drafted by: Davies
Landscape Architects. Ref: DLA-2009-ARB-RPT-01-RevP02.
Dated: May 2021

Assessment of Noise Impact. Drafted by: Sharps Acoustics.
Dated: 18th June 2021

Additional Noise Data. Drafted by: Sharps Acoustics. Dated:
3" September 2021

Daylight and Sunlight Report. Drafted by: Right of Light
Consulting. Dated: 18th June 2021

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper

planning.

Page 62



3. Land affected by contamination

Following demolition and necessary site clearance and prior to
commencement of development approved by this planning permission
a remediation strategy that includes the following components to deal
with the risks associated with contamination of the site shall be
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority:

1. A preliminary risk assessment which has identified:
- all previous uses
- potential contaminants associated with those uses
- aconceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and
receptors
- potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the
site.

2. A site investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide information for a
detailed assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected,
including those off site.

3. The results of the site investigation and the detailed risk assessment
referred to in (2) and, based on these, an options appraisal and
remediation strategy giving full details of the remediation measures
required and how they are to be undertaken.

4. A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected
in order to demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation
strategy in (3) are complete and identifying any requirements for
longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and
arrangements for contingency action.

Any changes to these components require the express written consent
of the local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented as
approved.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not contribute to, and is
not put at unacceptable risk from or adversely affected by,
unacceptable levels of water pollution in line with paragraph 174 of the

National Planning Policy Framework.

4. Verification Report

Page 63



No occupation of any part of the permitted development shall take
place until a verification report demonstrating completion of works set
out in the approved remediation strategy and the effectiveness of the
remediation shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the local
planning authority. The report shall include results of sampling and
monitoring carried out in accordance with the approved verification
plan to demonstrate that the site remediation criteria have been met.

Reason: To ensure that the site does not pose any further risk to human
health or the water environment by demonstrating that the
requirements of the approved verification plan have been met and that
remediation of the site is complete. This is in line with paragraph 174 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance Plan for Groundwater

No development shall take place, with the exception of demolition
works and necessary site clearance, until a long-term monitoring and
maintenance plan in respect of contamination, including a timetable of
monitoring and submission of reports to the Local Planning Authority,
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Reports as specified in the approved plan, including details of
any necessary contingency action arising from the monitoring, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Any necessary contingency measures shall be carried out in accordance
with the details in the approved reports. On completion of the
monitoring specified in the plan a final report demonstrating that all
long-term remediation works have been carried out and confirming
that remedial targets have been achieved shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the site does not pose any further risk to the
water environment by managing any ongoing contamination issues and
completing all necessary long-term remediation measures. This is in line
with paragraph 174 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Unidentified Contamination

If, during development, contamination not previously identified is
found to be present at the site then no further development (unless
otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning authority) shall be
carried out until the developer has submitted a remediation strategy to
the local planning authority detailing how this unsuspected

Page 64



contamination shall be dealt with and obtained written approval from
the Local Planning Authority. The remediation strategy shall be
implemented as approved.

Reason: No investigation can completely characterise a site. This
condition ensures that the development does not contribute to, is not
put at unacceptable risk from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable
levels of water pollution from previously unidentified contamination
sources at the development site. This is in line with paragraph 174 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Borehole Management

No development shall take place, with the exception of demolition
works and necessary site clearance until a scheme for managing any
borehole installed for the investigation of soils, groundwater or
geotechnical purposes has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall provide details of
how redundant boreholes are to be decommissioned and how any
boreholes that need to be retained, post-development, for monitoring
purposes will be secured, protected and inspected. The scheme as
approved shall be implemented prior to the occupation of any part of
the permitted development.

Reason: To ensure that redundant boreholes are safe and secure, and
do not cause groundwater pollution or loss of water supplies in line
with paragraph 174 of the National Planning Policy Framework and
Position Statement N Groundwater resources of ‘The Environment
Agency’s approach to groundwater protection’.

Piling

No piling, deep foundations and other intrusive groundworks using
penetrative measures shall be carried out unless a detailed method
statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that any proposed piling, deep foundations and
other intrusive groundworks do not harm groundwater resources in line
with paragraph 174 of the National Planning Policy Framework and
Position Statement N. Groundwater Resources of the ‘The Environment
Agency’s approach to groundwater protection’.

Page 65



9.

10.

11.

12.

Infiltration of Surface Water onto the Ground

No drainage systems for the infiltration of surface water to the ground
are permitted other than with the written consent of the Local Planning
Authority. Any proposals for such systems must be supported by an
assessment of the risks to controlled waters. The development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not contribute to, is not
put at unacceptable risk from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable
levels of water pollution caused by mobilised contaminants. This is in
line with paragraph 174 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Reinstatement of Footway

Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted the
vehicular and pedestrian (and cyclist) access to, and egress from, the
adjoining public highway shall be limited to the accesses shown on
approved drawing number: 20008- TP-003. Rev: B only. All other
accesses or egresses shall be permanently closed, and the footway /
kerb / highway verge shall be reinstated in accordance with a detailed
scheme to be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure construction of a satisfactory development and in
the interests of highway safety and amenity.

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until the new
on-site car parking spaces and manoeuvring areas have been
constructed and laid out in accordance with approved drawing number:
20008- TP-003. Rev: B (or any subsequent drawing submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority). The vehicular
access and onsite car parking spaces and manoeuvring areas shall be
retained at all times thereafter unless otherwise agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure that sufficient
on-site parking spaces are provided.

Refuse and Cycle Stores

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until refuse,
recycling and cycle storage has been provided in accordance with

Page 66



approved drawing numbers: 20008- TP-020. Rev: - and 20008- TP-021.
Rev: A. The storage facilities shall be retained at all times thereafter.

Reason: In the interests of the visual appearance of the site and to
ensure satisfactory provision for on-site cycle storage facilities.

13.Use classes B2, B8 or E(g) only

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended),
and any subsequent legislation that amends or supersedes this Order,
the floorspace hereby approved shall only be used for purposes within
Classes B2, B8 or E(g)(ii) and (iii) of the Town and Country Planning (Use
Classes) Order 1987 (as amended), unless otherwise agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To accord with the employment designation of the land and
the details of the submitted application.

Informatives

IN907 — Positive and proactive statement
IN9Q9 — Street naming and numbering
IN910 — Building Regulations

IN911 — Party Wall Act

IN912 — Hours of Construction

nhRhwpnpR

Page 67



Site Location Plan

@) o=y Um0 NBkde
- _ 100 - dL - 8000
| ‘ON Bupmeig

‘‘ ——

S D | 1202/90/£0 _ VO amu:_ XS
kg oD | 9Kg w5 | “Ag uweigq

st el sz 0
ey

ONINNVYId NMOL

NVY1d NOLLYDOT 3LIS

L Bumeig

QHO4LYM AVM TVINOT0D
"o el /

ol

oudelg pasLEyD

\\J\fw,//,é\\

MRVEY I

Lo SPoIRYSILIC MM
WO SPRIRSIIOIBSALINDUS

0Z1Z 00k£ 0Z(0}oir+

10911Yyd4eYS|ulod

718 XIOM ucpuoy
WAAS WejnuBA $T- §
U 2snoH Bad

swa o vondossa) Ay

“siesoxddy Aimers o palans
“8060911 0U U0 [T ST|RI0SSY 8 YSIWED ¥ 3

WAL oD @ ‘SO
ARUOEIS 5 ATBIEN BH J0 JB0AUCD) 843 JO SI_E?.!

S31O0N

Page 68



Existing Photos

Eastern Parcel from junction of Colonial Way and Clive Way

Page 69



Proposed Site Plan

Page 70



Elevations of Unit 1

WEEE Gk a0

5129112 BYSIUIO]

!
]

Zm sz v
g wman -8
!....

SR s w400 BRI
H006 T SIS Y1 Sockql SMaM LRY
P—

Sh0t T sy s s e
S e rs iy
BOZ SORUBS DREOI0Y

v smed pasame

o v 0D s SO
OO (B4 Ui ABUED RN

L0 wa
eI 13 S P 2009 SR 200

402 T S0 U 059 BUpaST
150 0 0, T 890 U 10

sugt s
otz ) SO Jo0p, PR BN
SN 250 BNGP LAYy Ddd

8402 T MY U (405 S5
5 WO P00 BTGP LAY D

wazu
B p pue Buppes [ e
oo oo 5 oo

snez u e
R

SIS v u
1em s S A B e

S0 061 i faog oo
sBunsEy PAjER PUS BUDDRD |V, (E)8
Pl epozaden pre KEuezol

g SRR
ey iwpicaaden pre Az

FE0L Ty g Bamazoas

S e P Guoer (o i
PO IBROZa0RA P AISHIZI0H
T oy

By pan o BB e
e wpescan s sz

ey e s S5 o s
bR wdrscea vt Ao

5008 W4
01058 ABUIBR BTN R BET

oz slluyog alln s s

asoz 1 o sy
on1)B6zsa o AR o0 e

DEe® @ e P ®EeE 09 200 @R

NOILVAITE L§VE HINOS

NOILYAZTS LSV HLHON

Page 71



Elevations of Unit 2

(5 s p s

- 110 - dl - 8000Z__

ONINNYTd NMOL
PR NOLLVAZ 13 153M HIHON

SNOLLYAT3 Z 1IN

QUOALYM AV TYINO1OD
[ ——

[r———

A VAT

s
et v ek

OEE ke B0 4

2831LDIBYS|UIO

0 sz vopn
£ ang cumnp g
& oo o

= =

sfaued apueds oy 400) pazery
5008 Ty S o Secka g e
mnon wogeLen,

402 Wl SN 560 T8N
S e o i

g Bl paRadoid

fdoue sEud pasamey
G O 00 T SpOTILL U
iocking e st AT I
- sL0
R 14 U PR 000 AL 000
@102 T 0y 2099 BupRo]

(50 0 TR Ty Aoy

i I
a0 T G U e Baepee
P of mio9p 0350 0 1B0LS.

S10s Tl

e PR RO LAY NOLIVAST 1S3M HLNOS

89 ®eee @@REi

L0 TYH ARSI 1 905 SRy
DU poE[S SO LAY D

g
SBurgpe P U B [ s
Pl [SF{GzRRA P (8385

anog u Bumoer

|

§

%
®®®

oo SOk ST b
Py [BCER0RN PR & RuBZ0N.

10530 s b s
BBULIER) PR PR P | (1B
Fo e s S o

55047V g Bamasms

SBup) PR DU DUSOND [, K
S BRIOTB0R D KIFVOTION

2306 Ty ek e
EBurgss P pUS BN v,
P SR02B08 P KRHOZIOH,

00 Wy By
HBULES PRIER DU GUSDRS (B, B3
Py OOZ0R P KRGO

2008 W
v 1 abuony ion S SaNEd

0z 4 bRy e s 39053

g0 Ty farg Bumascog
ey gz o e o s 17
Aot

TE®E ® @ e @®

s s et
P ————
A W 3 s

Aar s 5410 S 3 1 U
i s s ) ey

S3LON

Page 72



Elevations of Unit 3

e

£10 - d1 - 80007

Eisal]
§3 TEOChOME THBODTT NS
i
B [

DNINNYTd NMOL
e NOILYAZ A 1SVE HLNOS

 SNOLIVAZ3 € LINN

QHO419M AWM TVINOTOD,

:..33,..“
=3

S Hhva

3

@

T sy e s
A LEERUHRELKABR AL
E

o

= 1

7

g ——

o mms,
-

|

] [

st amctsoyreont peeey (7
BO8 TV SIS U ST ASAURH A
st 3

.01 7 gy s s
SIS o
oo syt B
fooum s sy B

OF 0F0v0 Ty SpceUeL U
SQundind e s ABEn D 2003

B oL e
Ly 0 a2 e 1030 1 e ]

e o, ity

102 T ETOBIAY U1 GR B
6001 Q5L W G015 UBH U0
9203 1124 111G Ui CuLst Bupey
Vel e A B S

a
vz u sousey 1o0p s
e poslE arap ununy Sdd B R NOILYASTE L§W3 HLHON

S T e GOTSBE
;;.Eu.;u.ﬂ?xs‘,szizu.a,Nr

=nzzu
‘30uBEn 95UEIBE DUE CUFERR | W B3
= repoeadeu B

e
16w spsoduizs quangy pe A

1055 07 Ty Ao ang
AT peteTel 212 BlIpo
‘siUoid rpazeday pe| ARLIZLON

gz
SBorysery paeris due B
hetead Rpizaciea e Al |

s v
g v oy s o e 6

i shuey B pur el (2

g1 Tav feig Eumesns, ]
e gz o et oo R drrgeg - b

Page 73



	Agenda
	 Conduct of the meeting
	DMC Presentation 07 December

	4 21/01279/FUL – The Imam Hussein Foundation, 205 North Approach, WD25 0ES
	Appendix 1 for 21/01279/FUL – The Imam Hussein Foundation, 205 North Approach, WD25 0ES

	5 21/01496/FUL 140 Pinner Road Watford WD19 4EN
	Appendix 1 for 21/01496/FUL 140 Pinner Road Watford WD19 4EN

	6 21/00971/FULM - Land To South Of Colonial Way Either Side Clive Way, Watford, WD24 4FL
	Appendix 1 for 21/00971/FULM - Land To South Of Colonial Way Either Side Clive Way, Watford, WD24 4FL


